August 24, 1935,

Dear My, Horeh:

You asked Mr, Kimmell to give you a weekly report of the Master
Institute on August 23rd, Unfortunately we eould not comply
with your request, as 3000 catalogues of the vaster Tnstitute
haye arrived from *the printer and we had to eheck them, whiech
took practically the whole dav.

This morning T am éndeavoring to glve you that information whiech
you are requesting.

We paid $80,00, as per our agreement to the printer upon the
e“ivery of the eatalogues, e have at pregsent in our bank
aggount $2,.,48, i

Of course you realize that when you sent $50 on August 2nd,

~ towards the payment of the eatalogue, the Sehoel at that tima

beingz in need of & much larger sum £0 emable 1tself to cover

the most urgent expenses, found itself in a very serious situatiom.

I advised you aboub the situation during our reeent board meetings
ag well as in my financial veport of August 1, and also in my
Master Institute report #198, ~

_Fdd 4t rot been for the payment of $40.00 by our Patron, Vrs.
Negarsulmer, which she made earlier than usual because of ny
‘request, £hé Master Institute could not have gontinued its
existence at that time,

T tmst that you will give your attenbtion this coming week to
this serious matter.

Yours very sineerely,

Directors




Dear Mres, Lichtmann,

to hear that the School is in suel fimancially strained condition.
L0 advise you of the Tollowing.
A1l ‘Trustees are fully aware that the Roerich Euseum‘has no fundsLbut Es bur=
dened with huge debts. We are facing 3 law suits this week amounting %o
#11,000,~- These sults must be settled, otherwise great damege will come upon
the Name of the Museum,  With the other committments of the Museum you and
all Trustees are fully acquainted,

According to the Bookkeepers Statenent, the Master Institute has given on
balance $230,~ to the Museun during season 1934-1935

‘ Funds received by the Museums Funds given 'to Master Institite

Juler 1934 - '$40, < Vay 1935 $150,-
Cctober Qs~ June 100, -
November 60~ August 50 ¢~ (L.L.Horch)
December 150.« 9300, -
'.Tann 1935 1755"
%}531."

(I wish %o assure you that any sums advanced by the gchool Departmént and
other Departments and ¥ friends are very highly appreciated by me)

This is considerably below the anticipated sum which you expected to have
as surplus during the season 1934-1935, according to the Budget of the has-
ter Institute which you submitted on March 29th, 1934 in the presence of
Profe. N. Roerich to the Trustees;

In this Budget you expected from Tuition fees $<0,000,~- and a surplus of

w8305~ which was listed at that Meeting as an Income for the Museun.
.ﬁ.ccording to the statement given to theé Board of Regents, from 1934 June 30

to July lst, 1935, $5904.25 was received from Tuition fees. ‘During the
“geason of 1929-30 $37,173.56 was taken in by the school im tuition fees.

I repeat again that the Museum is not an Income producing Institution and
therefore it cannot support another Bepartment. It is but natural that the
school should substantially assist the Museum financially for the space and
privileges which the school receives from the Museum,

In reply to your Statement that the School is financially depleted on account
of Suums given to the Nuseum, it sSecems to me it would be more:correct and
Just to say that onme of the causes why there exists a lack of funds in*-the
school is the ‘embezzlement of funds by the Boakeeper.

The President and the Museum do not accept any blame for the lack of funds
‘which the ‘School has at present nor for anything else which might oceur to
this Department. The Director of the Master Institute, School Department
has enjoyed full freedom of actions and has had a separate Bank account,

. according to Professor Roerich's Ruling. :




It is also unfortunate that
to the Museuw during the Seas
Press Budgel submitted by rch 895th;,
tae trustees, a surplus of $1100 Was pecte 0. be: available
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rou eould not~ iraw your "Administration", I would
Hat the Se r't pieg saliry should have: been
the Di“evb sBalary, especially as the Summer
v.abtended,
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some funds ¥ d-be advanced Schools At

kaow how :to find mds. foxr Setbliﬂ¢ 18 Law Sults
large payments which now muat be: made iiss Norton,
and others,. The Chem I Bank wants

larger Payments and
with:a legal aetion,

Very sincerely yours,
Louis L. Horchs.
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Septe 5y 1935.
My dear My, Horchi

I received today your letter of Sept. 4th to which I wish to answer as
followss '

While « I, noteiwhatsyop are mriling about’ the situation of the Roerigh
lMuseum, 1 also, as the Dixector of the Master Institute of United Arts,
the School of the Museum, have kept the Trustees fully informed during
the recent months about the serious financial condition of the laster
Institute,

In my last two statements, sent to you directly during the last tweo
weeks, I asked for a comparatively small sum to help the School prior
to October 1st, which is the begimming of our season, until the enroile
ment of the students begins and tie tuition fees will be paids

‘s per your bookkeeper's statement the lMaster Institute has loaned
rom its funds to the Roerich Museum $531.00. As this statement is
incorregt I am submitting here the itemized statement of the moneys
given by the Master Institute to the Roerich Museum, since May 7th,
1934, : :
: May Ty 1934essosenssnossbonscesscedd0s00
JUly Aks T Sansnestssbnaresrerhsad 40400
OCts 13, " sesnessnsessenensnsecses D000
Qcte 23, # sssessemscsessssssssanans 0000
Nove 30, " ssossesscssssssnssssesaakolell
Dege 26, " FProsseds.from Moxrdkin
Recitales 56400
Jdane 7, 19550o-.oonoo.oqooooo.-ooo 50,00
Jans 10 " “eassnessesnssssensanas 050400

Janw 16 " 229930000008 ea630200800 75.00

$571400

You state in your letter that you have thus far returned to the Master
Institute $300,00, counting your own chegk for $50,00, which you sent
‘in August as also part payment of the loan to the liaster Institute,
Thus the balance left i3 $271.004 which represents the debi of the
' Roerich Museum to the Master Institute. ad
This was the sum which I begged to hive returned to the liaster Institute,
as 1t would have enabled me to pay the most urgent obligations of the
Master Institute, circularize the new catalogue, pay for some advere
tisement priox to the sghool season, and %o order necessary repairs and:
painting of the studiosy in order to prepare the school in o fitting
gondition prior to the enrolling of the students.

Thus you can see that I only asked for the return of the debt, and not
for any exeessive sums. : e ; ; ' :

I also wish to 'draw your attention to the faet that I stated in our
Board Meetings recently, as well as in my financial statements of the
Master Institute, that my administration was not incliuded in all




